
 

 

      

REAP Executive Committee Meeting Agenda 
Wichita Workforce Center 

2021 N Amidon Ave #1100 
Wichita, KS 67203 

February 2, 2023  ~ 11:30 am 

 
1. Welcome and Introductions: Commissioner Pete Meitzner, Chair (11:30am)  

 
2. Approval of Minutes from Executive Committee Meeting from December 8, 2022  

(pp. 2-6): Commissioner Pete Meitzner, Chair 
Recommended Action: Approve the Minutes from the December 8, 2022 REAP Executive 
Committee meeting.  

 
3. Amtrak Heartland Flyer Extension Federal Railway Administration Grant (pp. 7-8):  
 Cory Davis, Director, Multimodal Transportation and Innovation, KDOT  
 Recommended Action:  Approve REAP Letter of Support for the Kansas Department of 

Transportation, Oklahoma Department of Transportation, and Texas Department of 
Transportation’s joint application for the Heartland Flyer Extension to be accepted into 
the U.S. Department of Transportation’s Federal Railroad Administration’s Corridor 
Identification and Development (Corridor ID) Program. 

 
4. 2023 Kansas Legislature Update (pp. 9-22):  Kimberly and Josh Svaty 
 Recommended Action:  Provide Feedback. 
 
5. Committee Reports: 
  A. Wichita Airport Advisory Board (pp. 23-24) 
  B. Wichita Transit Advisory Board (pp. 25-27) 
  
6. Community Updates  
 
7. Adjourn 

 
NEXT MEETING: Our next meeting will be Thursday, March 2, 2023, at 11:30 a.m.  

1 



 

 

      

REAP Executive Committee 

Meeting Minutes  

Wichita Workforce Center 
2021 N Amidon Ave #1100 

Wichita, KS 67203 
 

December 8, 2022 ~ 11:30 am 

 
1. Welcome and Introductions: Mayor Tom Brown, Chair (11:30 a.m.)  

 
2. Approval of Minutes from Executive Committee Meeting from Nov. 10, 2022: Mayor Tom 

Brown, Chair 
 

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner Pete Meitnzer (Sedgwick County) made a 

motion to approve November 10, 2022, REAP Executive Committee Meeting 

Minutes. Council Member Tom Jones (Park City) seconded.  THE MOTION 

PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

3. REAP 2023 Budget & Work Plan:  Mayor Brown and Laura Rainwater 
 
 The REAP Work Plan and Budget for 2023 was presented by Mayor Brown and Laura 

Rainwater. 
 
 The recommendations to consider for 2023 are: 

 Continue REAP regional collaborative efforts on key legislative and policy 
priorities, including, but not limited to: 
o Healthcare/behavioral healthcare 
o Affordable housing 
o Passenger Rail/transportation 
o Water/infrastructure 
o Talent pipeline and workforce sustainability – Childcare, ex-offender, tech 

education, youth apprenticeship 

 Continued collaboration between governing bodies and levels of government 

 Continue representation on the following boards and committees: 
o South Central Kansas Transportation Task Force 
o Wichita/Sedgwick County Mental Health and Substance Abuse Coalition 
o Talent Roadmap Leadership Coalition 
o I Fly Wichita 
o Childcare Advocacy Task Force 

2 



 

 

      

o WAMPO 
o Wichita Airport Advisory Board 
o Wichita Transit Advisory Board 

 REAP business will be done by the Executive Committee meeting on the second 
Thursday of each month at 11:30 a.m. 

 Coordinate relationships and raise awareness about regional policy priorities with 
the South Central Legislative Delegation and the Federal Congressional Delegation 

 Provide quarterly economic modeling and labor market analysis for 10-county 
region and for REAP member communities upon request 

  

ACTION TAKEN: Kelly McElroy (Newton) made a motion to approve moving 

REAP Executive meetings to the 1st Thursday of each month. Council Member 

Nick Engel (Derby) seconded.  THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

ACTION TAKEN: Council Member Tom Jones (Park City) made a motion to 

approve the REAP 2023 Work Plan. Council Member Nick Engel (Derby) 

seconded.  THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

ACTION TAKEN: Commissioner Chip Westfall (Harvey County) made a motion 

to approve the REAP 2023 budget. Mayor Russ Kessler (Haysville) seconded.  

THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

4. 2023 Joint Regional Legislative and Policy Priorities (pg. 10): Mayor Tom Brown, Laura 
Rainwater and Kimberly Svaty  

 
The 2023 Joint Legislative Agenda will help to attract and retain jobs, ensure that 
there is an adequate workforce and help provide a safe and prosperous place to live and 
work in the South Central Region. We urge the Kansas legislature and executive 
branch to support the following: 

 Funding for the Wichita WSU KU Biomedical campus 

 Continued funding, including SGF & SPARK, for mental health hospital 
construction in the region 

 Legislation to address municipal water supply and regulatory uncertainty 

 Policies that enable employment, skills training, and education solutions that 
increase the number of skilled workers in South Central Kansas, including 
advanced manufacturing, aviation, agriculture, healthcare, and the growing 
tech industry 

 Policies that support legislative and regulatory changes to foster high-quality, 
affordable and safe childcare in the state 

 Extension of the Heartland Flyer Amtrak line connection 

 Prioritizing investments in broadband for the south-central region 
  

3 



 

 

      

 Legislative updates from Kimberly Svaty 

 SPARK committee is meeting next week 

 State is flush with cash. Should be a strong push to fund 

 Water Supply & Regulatory uncertainty 

 KMU water summit last week - excellent collaboration 

 Cleaning up water supply, addressing contamination plumes that are 

threatening watch supply - chemicals and sedimentation 

ACTION TAKEN: Council Member Nick Engel (Derby) made a motion to 

Approve the 2023 Joint Regional Legislative and Policy Priorities. Council 

Member Tom Jones (Park City) seconded.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

5. Election of REAP Executive Committee Officers (pg. 11):  Laura Rainwater 
 
At the November 10, 2022 REAP Executive Committee meeting, the following REAP 
members were appointed to serve on the nominating committee: REAP Chair Mayor Tom 
Brown (McPherson), Council Member Tom Jones (Park City), Mayor Pat Stivers (Maize) 
and City Manager Kelly McElroy (Newton). 
 
The nominating committee met virtually on Thursday, November 30, 2022, via Zoom. 
They are recommending the following slate of REAP Executive Committee Officers to 
serve a one-year term commencing on January 1, 2023 and ending December 31, 2023. 
 

Chair: Commissioner Pete Meitzner (Sedgwick County) 
Vice Chair: City Manager Kelly McElroy (Newton) 
Treasurer: Mayor Russ Kessler (Haysville) 

 
 There were no other nominations from the floor. 
 

ACTION TAKEN: Council Member Tom Jones (Park City) made a motion to 

approve the slate of REAP Executive Committee Officers, as presented. 

Commissioner Chip Westfall (Harvey County) seconded.  MOTION PASSED 

UNANIMOUSLY. 

6. Committee Reports 
 A. Airport Advisory Board (pg. 12): Randy Frazer (Arkansas City) 
 B. Transit Advisory Committee (pg. 13): Troy Tabor (Andover)  

 Notice of Funding Opportunity by the Federal Railway Administration (FRA) was 
released two hours ago  

 Much credit to Cory Davis & KDOT  

 Heartland Flyer Extension qualifies under NOFO 

4 



 

 

      

 1st-Quarter (mid-March) submission 

 20% match may be required 

 Transportation- we need to monitor who is going to be the next KDOT secretary. 
In need of a highly-qualified Kansan 

 
7. Community Updates  

 Closure of cabinet-making shop, which has 480 jobs, Rapid Response services from 
Workforce initiated 

 Agco, Black & Decker, Bunting, Park Aerospace, and Frito King have all stepped up 
to absorb 

 Wind Energy regulation  

 Prairieview Building purchase by County to become courthouse annex 

 January 6, 2-4 pm, reception for Commissioner Chip Westfall (Harvey County) 

 Mayor Kessler: Partnership w/PBS helped out with pledge drive Kansas from above 

 Birth of Sedgwick County Zoo chimpanzee video went viral with over 3 billion views 
 
8. Adjourn (12:28 p.m.) 
 

NEXT MEETING:  NO MEETING IN JANUARY!  Our next meeting will be Thursday, 
February 2, 2023, at 11:30 a.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 



 

 

      

Attendance: 
 

Name City/Organization In 
Person 

Zoom 

Mayor Tom Brown McPherson X  

Commissioner Peter Meitzner Sedgwick County X  

Will Black Haysville  X 

Council Member Mike Hoheisel Wichita  X 

Leslie Schragg Kingman County EDC  X 

Commissioner Chip Westfall Harvey County X  

Diane Tinker Hurst WSU  X 

Council Member Tom Jones Park City X  

Council Member Nick Engle Derby X  

Mayor Russ Kessler Haysville X  

Council Member Troy Tabor Andover  X 

Kristi Norcutt Lindsborg  X 

Dr. Justin Henry Goddard USD  X 

Marc Howell SCKEDD X  

Laura Rainwater REAP X  

Kennisha Rolfe Workforce Alliance X  

Keith Lawing Workforce Alliance X  

Ashely Bryers WAMPO  X 

Lauren Clary KS Gas Service X  

Kelly McElroy Newton X  

Tim Boese GMD2  X 

Kimberly Svaty Gencur Svaty  X 

Randy Frazer Ark City  X 

Daniela Rivas McPherson  X 

 

6 



REAP Executive Committee 

Item: Amtrak Heartland Flyer Extension FRA Grant 

February 2, 2023          Item #3 
 

On December 20, 2022, the Federal Railroad Administration (FRA) released a Notice of 

Solicitation of Corridor Proposals for the U.S. Department of Transportation’s newly established 

Corridor ID program. The Kansas Department of Transportation and Oklahoma Department of 

Transportation intend to jointly apply for the Heartland Flyer Extension from Oklahoma City, OK 

to Newton, KS to be selected for the Corridor ID program, reconnecting numerous Oklahoma 

and Kansas communities north to the national Amtrak network via the Southwest Chief.  

Selection into the Corridor ID program would provide funding for the agencies to finalize a 

Service Development Plan (SDP) for the corridor and reflects FRA’s interest in advancing the 

corridor to implementation and operation. The Corridor ID program is intended to become the 

primary means for directing federal financial support and technical assistance toward the 

development of proposals for new or improved intercity passenger rail services and KDOT and 

ODOT strongly believe the Heartland Flyer Extension has a compelling case for being included in 

the program.  

In the Notice, FRA indicated the agency would consider letters of support from partnering 

organizations as part of the evaluation process for the applications. 

7 



 
 

February 3, 2023 

 

To: The Honorable Pete Buttigieg, Secretary 

United States Department of Transportation 

1200 New Jersey Ave, SE 

Washington, DC 20590 

 

Dear Secretary Buttigieg, 

 

The Regional Economic Area Partnership (REAP) is pleased to offer support for the Kansas 

Department of Transportation, Oklahoma Department of Transportation, and Texas Department 

of Transportation’s joint application for the Heartland Flyer Extension to be accepted into the 

U.S. Department of Transportation’s Federal Railroad Administration’s Corridor Identification 

and Development (Corridor ID) Program. This extension is a long-held economic development 

and transportation objective to re-connect numerous Oklahoma and Kansas communities to the 

national network via the Southwest Chief at Newton, Kansas, and points across the nation. 

 

REAP is comprised of over 35 city and county governments in ten counties of South Central 

Kansas, including Butler, Cowley, Harper, Harvey, Kingman, McPherson, Pratt, Reno, 

Sedgwick, and Sumner, as well as multiple school districts and higher education institutions. 

These jurisdictions and education partners have voluntarily joined together to guide state and 

national actions that affect economic development in the region and to consider and adopt joint 

actions among member governments that enhance the regional economy. 

 

The long-awaited, full re-connection of this corridor in America’s Heartland will provide 

increased transportation choices and economic opportunity for rural and urban residents and 

businesses alike.  With its long-term value of enhancing economic growth within the I-35 

Corridor megaregion, and near-term benefit for improving the Amtrak National system, the 

Heartland Flyer Extension is vital. 

 

Restoring the Heartland Flyer between Texas and Kansas is also an important means of fully 

connecting the nation’s fastest-growing economic development corridor located along Interstate 

35 (Laredo, TX – Kansas City, MO) boasting over 40 million population, 10 million jobs, and a 

28 percent growth rate. The gap in rail service between Oklahoma City and Newton must be 

remedied to ensure we take advantage of the opportunity to enhance our links with this enormous 

and growing economic super-region. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Chairman Pete Meitzner 

Sedgwick County Commission 

REAP Chair 

 

8 



 

 

                                       

 
2023 Kansas Legislative Session 

Weekly Legislative & Regulatory Update 
GO CHIEFS! 

Super Bowl LVII here we come! 
 

 
At A Glance 

• Debate over PayGo rule offers first test 
• New Senate Majority Whip 
• Robust hearing schedule on bills in nearly all committees 
• Movies in Kansas, LPC update,  

Looking Ahead 

• 30 January – HARVEST H2 Summit @KU Innovation Park 
• 31January – Physical/Cybersecurity Energy Hour lunch & learn for legislators 
• 31 January GSPA sponsors Rural Caucus lunch 
• 31 January – Last Day for individual legislators to request a bill 

 
Welcome to Week 4 
After being delayed by a false positive COVID test and then the KU/KSU basketball game, 
Governor Kelly delivered her State of the State speech which was followed by the Republican 
response delivered by Senate President Ty Masterson.  A summary of both speeches was 
previously provided this week, but is attached to the end of this update as well. 
 
The House had its first protracted debate of the session which centered around the rules of 
debate for the biennium.  Specifically, the discussion centered on the “Pay Go” rule which says 
while debating the budget, if there is a proposal to increase spending then elsewhere in the 
budget there must be an according reduction in spending. After nearly two hours of debate, the 
House Rules were approved on party lines with the touchy Pay Go rule intact. By the end of the 
week another fiscal question was raised as Republicans are recommending adding another $1 
billion to the State’s Rainy Day Fund whereas Governor Kelly proposed adding $500M to the 
already “full” Rainy Day Fund which is statutorily set at 7.5% of the State General Fund. While 
lawmakers debate a slew of tax bills that would cut income, corporate and sales taxes, some are 
also asking why make a full $1 Billion transfer and return something near $500M to taxpayers.  
 

9 



The Senate caucused to elect a new Senate Majority Whip after the current Whip’s resignation 
just prior to session.  Senator Rick Kloos (R-Topeka) was selected by his peers after just two 
years in the Chamber to assume a role in the leadership ranks. 
 
Local Government Heats Up 
Redefining the powers of local government has become an annual activity at the Legislature and 
this year promises to be no different.  This week Senate Bill 86 was introduced, requiring County 
Commissioners to disclose a substantial interest or conflict of interest in any wind farm or solar 
project.  If local officials did disclose an interest, they could vote to prohibit the facility but the bill 
requires them to abstain from any other action.  The bill is abnormal in the fact that it singles out 
one area of the economy for disclosure, and the bill is also extensive because it includes a broad 
range of relatives that would trigger disclosure, including “intimate relatives”, which is 
undefined.  Legislation banning local governments from banning plastics was introduced. There 
is momentum to advance the measure to the Governor. Interestingly, a new bill was introduced 
in the Senate that would allow local governments to prohibit abortions within their city or county 
limits. It has been a while since a bill giving more authority to local government has been 
introduced.   
 
Energy Hearings Get Underway 
Senate Utilities began its actual bill hearings this week with hearings on SB 46 and SB 49.  
These are the companion “light mitigation” bills that came out of last year’s special Senate 
committee on light mitigation that met in the fall.  SB 49 would require all new wind farms after 
July 1, 2023 to install light mitigation technology, and SB 46 requires existing wind farms to 
install light mitigation technology when they renegotiate their long term power purchase 
agreements.  Both hearings were completed this week and the Chairman indicated he would 
potentially work the bills next week or the week after.  
 
Next week, SB 68 which creates a Right of First Refusal (ROFR) for incumbent transmission 
owners in Kansas is on the docket for debate with proponents of the bill receiving two days of 
hearing and bill opponents receiving two days of hearing as well.  In advance of the hearings 
next week, the Southwest Power Pool (SPP) is doing a deep dive for the Senate Utilities 
Committee on transmission planning.  The KCC is doing a similar deep dive, but for ratemaking 
related to transmission.  
 
Several more hot-topic energy bills were also introduced in both the House and Senate Utilities 
Committee.  Both the House and Senate Utilities Committee have bills pending before them that 
would call for the Kansas Corporation Commission Commissioners to be elected rather than 
appointed by the Governor and subject to Senate confirmation. Supporters of the bill suggest 
direct election of the Commissioners would make the KCC more responsive to ratepayers. 
Companion bills pending in the House and Senate would require for KCC to consider regional 
rate competitiveness as a factor in rate making. The Consumer Utility Ratepayer Board (CURB) 
requested introduction of legislation that would allow for creation of a low-income tariff. None of 
the five bills have been scheduled for a hearing.  
 
 

10 



Water Tells Positive Stories 
The House Water Committee and Senate Agriculture and Natural Resources Committee 
continued their informational briefings this week and had a boost in attendance because of a 
Kansas Water Authority meeting going on in Topeka at the same time.  Part of those 
presentations included hearing from the leadership of GMDs 1 and 4, the two Groundwater 
Management Districts in West Central and Northwest Kansas, respectively.  GMD 4 was the first 
Groundwater Management District to have an active LEMA (a Local Enhanced Management 
Area) within its GMD, and they presented data to both committees that showed that not only was 
it successful, but the initial LEMA had reduced pumping by 35% rather than the first suggested 
20%, and the producers were more profitable now than they were prior to the reductions.  The 
Chair of the Water Committee and Ranking Minority on the Water Committee in the House even 
recognized the two leaders of those respective GMDs on the House Floor on Tuesday before 
the beginning of session.   
 
There is word around the building that a large bill may be being crafted that would fund the 
State’s Water Plan Fund, likely from the Blue Ribbon Task Force’s recommendation that it come 
from a .10 cent sales tax which would raise around $55 million per year.  The Kansas Legislature 
has not dedicated that amount of money to a single project in a long time and any legislation of 
that size will require a large amount of back-and-forth between multiple parties if it is to cross 
the finish line, but it would be a major milestone for Kansas if the water plan fund were to be fully 
funded moving forward.  Addressing water – both quantity and quality – was featured in 
Governor Kelly’s State of the State address it was a topic that garnered applause from the entire 
chamber. 
 
Lesser Prairie Chicken Resolution 
The House Agriculture Committee discussed a resolution this week calling on the Federal 
Government to trust the local ranchers and land managers to know what is best for the 
management of the Lesser Prairie Chicken whose numbers and historic habitat have declined 
by 90% since before the turn of the last century.  US Fish and Wildlife estimate around 32,000 
birds remain in 5 states – Texas, New Mexico, Oklahoma, Kansas, and Colorado, with the very 
best habitat and chicken numbers in Kansas.  A resolution is non-binding and does not have the 
force of law over the federal government, but endangered species issues have always had 
outsized influence in Topeka and Lesser Prairie Chicken issues involve agriculture, energy 
exploration, and overall infrastructure (leading to fragmentation of habitat) so this is an issue on 
many people’s minds.   
 
Foreign Ownership of Land 
SB 100 was introduced in Senate Federal & State Affairs and referred to Senate Judiciary 
committee.  Following the bill’s introduction, the Attorney General and several legislators held a 
press conference touting the bill and its need. Under the measure, the state would prohibit 
companies that have more than 50% ownership from outside the United States from having any 
ownership interest in property within the state of Kansas.  The bill excludes four counties: 
Johnson, Sedgwick, Shawnee, and Wyandotte from the provisions of the bill. 
 
 

11 



Movies in Kansas? 
Legislation allowing for up to a $10 million tax credit for movies produced and filmed in Kansas 
will have a hearing this next week in House Appropriations. It was learned that the Yellowstone 
spinoff, Tulsa King was actually supposed to be filmed in Kansas and call the Kansas City King, 
but the State does not offer any incentives for film making in the state.  The bill also includes 
direct appropriations for competitive grants for Kansas filmmakers.  The bill is being pushed by a 
group called “Grow Kansas Film” and is represented by a broad range of Kansans associated 
with the film industry, including Kevin Willmott, the KU Film professor and Oscar Winner, and 
David Parks, a filmmaker and son of Gordon Parks.  Kansas used to have a tax credit for movie 
production in the state but the program was dropped a decade ago.  While there are a number 
of groups vying for dollars before the Legislature, we rarely have Oscar winners and those 
hearings tend to take on a little more excitement.   
 
The Kansas Legislature to You 
The Legislature aims to complete its session work by the 90th business day. There have been 
sessions shorter than 90 days. Procedural maneuvers exist allowing a session to extend beyond 
90 days. In recent years, the Legislature has gone 111 days and 115 days.  
 
Committees hearings and Chamber debate is available on the Legislative YouTube page and 
some committees allow for virtual testimony as well (if permission is granted by the Committee 
Chair). On the Kansas Legislature webpage, click on the Audio/Video link in the right-hand 
corner to be directed to your AV choices.  
Welcome | Kansas State Legislature (kslegislature.org) 
 
 
Closing Thoughts 
Please contact us anytime this legislative session with any questions, thoughts, or concerns.  
 
Kimberly & Josh Svaty 

 
Contact Information                                                                                                                                                         
Gencur Svaty Public Affairs  

Kimberly Gencur Svaty - 913.486.4446  | kimberly@gencursvaty.com 

Joshua Svaty - 785.472.7794 | joshua@joshuasvaty.com 

@gencursvaty | gencursvaty.com 

 

2023 Kansas Legislative Session 
State of the State Speech 

 
At A Glance 

Governor Kelly delivered a nearly 45 minute speech to a joint session of the Kansas 
House and Senate this evening also attended by the Lt. Governor, members of her 
cabinet, the Kansas Supreme Court justices, representatives of the various tribes and 

12 

http://www.kslegislature.org/li/
mailto:kimberly@gencursvaty.com
mailto:joshua@joshuasvaty.com


the Interim KBI director. The Governor touched on some bipartisan successes of the last 
four years, outlined her 2023 legislative agenda and finished on her focus for the next 
four years which is early childhood development and concluded with an ask that the 
Legislature meet her in the middle to create more bi-partisan success.  Below is an 
overview of her remarks. The speech can also be found online at State of the State Address 
01/24/2023 - YouTube. 

 
State of the State Speech 
Set a north star for second term – make Kansas the best place to raise a family. 
4 straight years of balanced budgets, fully funding schools, closed KDOT, landed the 
largest eco devo project in the history of our state while also creating the largest budget 
surplus and cutting taxes for all. State of our State is strong, very strong. 
 
Meet me in the middle 
 
Already released the budget so let’s start with the biggest issues. Three part plan saving 
$500M per year on top of $1B in tax savings from last years’ tax cuts. 
 

1. With inflation we need to help families 
a. Full eliminate food sales tax effective immediately – it currently doesn’t 

zero out until 2025. 
b. Axe sales tax on diapers and famine products – two other basic 

necessities that should be more affordable for Kansans.  
2. Four-day window every August for sales tax holidays on school supplies. Tax 

holiday helps families and teachers. 
3. Relief for retirees  

a. If earn 75K or less don’t pay state income tax, but if one dollar more then 
the full amount is taxed – raise threshold to 100K. 

 
We are in this position because of responsible policy.  Oppose irresponsible tax policy.  
Budget fully funds schools. Fully funding special education. Our partners in DC haven’t 
done their part to fund – need to push Congress to hold up their end. 
 
$15 B in new capital investment, created and retained over 54,000 jobs. As economic 
trajectory reaches higher, there are not enough skilled workers. Labor shortages are 
driving up prices and stunting growth. Must create a strong pipeline of talent with 
abundant educational opportunities here at home. 
 
Fully funding education is an important place to start. But must look outside our 
classroom. Created the Office of Apprenticeship in Commerce.  3,500 Kansans already 
in the program. Budget increases funding for this office. Must continue building on the 
Office’s good work. 
 

13 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3cdpRw0baB4
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3cdpRw0baB4


Water is the single most important issue facing Kansas. Some areas have 10 years left. 
Waiting for a miracle to happen is not an option. We are one state and if any part of our 
state suffers, we all suffer. Last year we updated the State Water plan, fully funded it for 
the first time in 15 years and paid off debt for 2 reservoirs. Will fully fund again, work 
with producers and irrigators to ensure our water quality and quantity. 
 
Medicaid expansion - Data shows Kansans are aligned with neighbors who have 
expanded Medicaid when neighbors took it too their voters. 7/10 Kansans support 
expansion. Another way to expand health care – legalize medical marijuana. Part of 
palliative care or to help with chronic pain. Outlined why the law should be changed. Not 
to say that legalization won’t be complex. Need safeguards in place to ensure it is not 
abuse. Can find a commonsense solution. 39 other states have done so. 
 
Mental health – Kansas ranks last in the US in access to mental health care. Expanded 
mental health program in schools, new youth psychiatric beds. Funding for adult 
services in the Wichita area in budget and funding to help shortage of mental health 
workers. Emergency workers are not eligible for PTSD mental health care. Need to 
protect them with funding like they protect us. Rise in opioid overdoses – KS 2nd highest 
increase in deaths – fentanyl main driver. Tools to law enforcement to stop supply of 
drugs. But drug addiction is a disease not a moral failure. Give funding for schools for 
OD reversing medicine on hand to help save lives. Need to decriminalize fentanyl test 
strips. They save lives and money. 
 
Expanding high speed internet, building housing, cybersecurity and physical security. 
Attention on the next four months, but also focusing on the next four years and decades. 
 
First EO of second term – taskforce to explore cabinet level position for early childhood. 
Agency completely focused for improving services for children in their earliest 
development.  
 
Examples of working across the aisle – 286 times signed bills into law had bi-partisan 
support.  Together will make Kansas the best place to raise a family. 
 
Republican Response 
Delivered by Senate President Ty Masterson can be found here 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JBh9zjMqF-A 
 
Below is the Senate President’s speech: 
Good evening and welcome back to the Senate Chamber here in the Kansas State 
Capitol, where I am proud to serve as President and where I am honored to deliver the 
Republican Response. 
  

14 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JBh9zjMqF-A


First, I want you all to be aware this "response" had to be prerecorded, so my remarks 
are clearly not in response to the governor's address but a republican response to the 
elements of her agenda we are aware of. 
  
In 2022, Republicans learned a hard lesson about how houses divided inevitably fall, 
resulting in the Governor winning another term with less than 50 percent of the vote – 
while we acknowledge that result, we also celebrate that a true majority elected 
Republicans to every other statewide office and to super majorities in the House and 
Senate. These results reveal a simple truth - that neither side can work from where they 
wish they were, but from where we are. 
  
As we begin the legislative session, I joined with our new house Speaker Dan Hawkins 
and the Republican super majorities in revealing our vision entitled a Better Way – Our 
Commitment to Kansas. It includes priorities from reducing your taxes and empowering 
parents, to creating jobs and protecting your liberty. 
  
During the campaign, the governor made repeated claims that she governed from the 
middle, and claimed many victories. Of course, the nature of our divided government 
means that any bill reaching the governor’s desk only does so with Republican effort, 
and all meaningful victories -- whether axing a tax, balancing a budget, or bringing new 
economic development to Kansas, all began with Republicans. Regardless of who 
attempts to take credit, I am optimistic that we will find more common ground. 
  
For instance, I was pleasantly surprised when the governor recently announced her 
support for Republican proposals to lower the retirement tax burden. I believe we can 
work with her to implement these ideas alongside structural reform that is key to 
keeping Kansas competitive. Republicans want to make taxes lower, flatter, and simpler 
– so when we send a bill to the governor's desk that does all that, I am hopeful she will 
meet us in the middle and sign it. 
  
Let’s be completely honest, when it comes to the budget, it was not a big 
accomplishment for any of us to "balance" a budget with hundreds of millions in printed 
federal dollars awash in the system. But with most economists forecasting a recession, 
due to the disastrous policies from the Biden administration, we hope to work with the 
governor to ensure our state remains on solid footing. That means setting aside 
sufficient resources for that rainy day and continuing to pay off debt, just like your 
household would. We must remain fiscally responsible and resist the considerable 
temptation to overspend and grow government. We hope the governor meets us there 
as well. 
  
While we are hopeful about opportunities to work together, there is no question 
significant differences remain. On many issues, the governors party has her walking 
down the far-left lane, if not the ditch outside of that. With how many times we heard her 

15 



tell us she is in the middle - this session, we will give her ample opportunity to show she 
really meant it. 
  
On education, Republicans will focus on students, not legacy systems, which means 
expanding educational opportunities for all of our children and ensuring parents are 
ultimately in control. We want high quality classical education that focuses on academic 
excellence, preparing our kids for a successful future, not the sexualized woke agenda 
we see permeating the system today. 
  
The sad reality is her party remains beholden to the public union leadership, which fears 
and resists parents having any form of school choice, just wanting a blank check to their 
system. This path is resulting in our schools devolving into little more than factories for a 
radical social agenda. This is why she vetoed the Parents Bill of Rights – but we will give 
her another chance this session. If she’s truly in the middle of the road, she’ll buck the 
radical elements of her party and sign the bill. 
  
Republicans also celebrate women's sports and recognize that to ensure a level playing 
field for all who compete, biological men should not compete in women's sports. It has 
nothing to do with sexuality or gender, it’s simply about fairness and science -- it's for 
that same reason we divide athletes up in weight classes or separate varsity from junior 
varsity. The governor said in an ad that "of course" she agrees with this, but has twice 
vetoed the bill. This session, we will provide her with a third opportunity to prove her 
words have meaning. 
  
Republicans support health care freedom and expanding access to affordable care 
through cost transparency, more competition, and less government regulation over your 
consumer choices – This can all be done while preserving a safety net for those in our 
society who are most vulnerable. Unfortunately, the governor's party remains focused 
almost solely on government-run health care, which would dramatically expand the 
administrative state and harm the very people for whom the Medicaid safety net was 
intended. 
  
Republicans support an "all of the above" energy policy --- that includes gas, coal, and 
nuclear -- which is necessary to lower utility bills and most importantly, delivers reliable 
heating and cooling for Kansans during extreme weather conditions. Democrats are 
increasingly beholden to climate activists that would send us back decades and put our 
citizens and our economy at risk; an agenda, that by its nature, opposes American 
energy independence. It is our hope that the governor will again resist the extreme 
elements in her party and work with us to reduce utility rates and protect our economy. 
  
Republicans will always support a culture of life. We desire to reduce the number of 
abortions by promoting adoption, expanding availability of crisis pregnancy centers, and 
preserving our common-sense protections currently in law, all which are currently under 
attack. In stark contrast, the governor’s party remains devoted to taxpayer-funded 

16 



abortion on demand, allowing the most inhumane procedures up to, and even past, the 
moment of birth. 
  
Finally, Republicans support our constitution, which means, that even in the toughest of 
times, we should pass no law that abridges our freedom of speech or our freedom of 
assembly, or prohibits our free exercise of religion, and preserving all other clearly-
enumerated constitutional rights; Democrats increasingly believe that such rights are 
subservient to the administrative state in order to create a false sense of safety. If the 
governor is truly moderate, she’ll side with us and the constitution we all swore to 
uphold. 
  
As Republicans, we are committed to putting you, our fellow Kansans, first. For now, we 
will take the governor at her word, that she will govern from the middle, and extend a 
hand of cooperation and begin this session with high hopes. You rightfully expect us to 
deliver results, not rhetoric, and work together to improve the lives of the people we 
represent. That is our commitment to you. 
  
May God Bless you and your family and may God Bless the great State of Kansas. 
Thank you for listening. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17 



 
 

  

 

18 



 

 

2023/2024 Legislative Bill Tracker 

Bill 
Number 

Author Bill Description Status Link 

SB 46 Senate 
Utilities 

Effective January 1, 2024 within six months of 
renegotiating a contract for power purchase 
application must be made with the FAA to 
consider light mitigation technology on 
operational wind farms. Installation to occur 
within 24 months. KDOT waiver process exists 
to delay installation if market conditions or 
supply chain issues arise.  
 

Introduced 1.12 
Hearing 1.25& 1.26 in 
Senate Utilities 

SB 46 Light Mitigation Operational 
 

SB 49 Senate 
Utilities 

Effective July 1, 2023 requires application with 
FAA for installation of light mitigation 
technology. Install to occur within 24 months 
on approved turbines. KDOT waiver process if 
market conditions or supply chain issues. 
 

Introduced 1.12 
Hearing 1.25& 1.26 in 
Senate Utilities 

SB 49 Light Mitigation Prospective 
 

SB 54 Senate 
Utilities 

Expanding the eligible uses to qualify for the 
0% state sales tax rate for certain utilities and 
providing for the levying of local sales tax on 
such sales by cities and counties. 
 

Introduced 1.20 
Hearing 2.1.23 

SB 54 Sales Tax Utilities 

SB 57 Senate 
Assessment & 
Taxation 

Establishing a 0% state rate for sales and use 
taxes for food and food ingredients, providing 
a sales tax exemption for children's diapers 
and feminine hygiene products, establishing 
the STAR bonds food sales tax revenue 
replacement fund and altering the calculation 
for STAR bond districts. 

Introduced 1.18 
Hearing 

SB 57 sales tax STAR Bond 

19 

http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/documents/sb46_00_0000.pdf
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/documents/sb49_00_0000.pdf
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/documents/sb54_00_0000.pdf
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/sb57/


 
SB 68 Senate 

Utilities 
Providing incumbent electric transmission 
owners a right of first refusal for the 
construction of certain electric transmission 
lines. Must be in RTO transmission plan, 
using SPP definition of transmission at 100kv 
and above. 
 

Introduced 1.19 
Hearing Senate Utilities 
2.6 & 2.7 Proponents 
2.8 & 2.9 Opponents 

SB 68 ROFR 

SB 71 Senate Ag & 
NR 

Requiring the secretary of agriculture to 
establish a division of sustainable agriculture 
that shall apply for federal grant funds under 
the greenhouse gas reduction fund to assist 
farmers in converting to renewable energy 
and sustainable agriculture practices 
 

Introduced 1.19 
Hearing 

SB 71 Sustainable Ag  

SB 78 Senate 
Utilities 

Requiring the state corporation commission to 
review the regional rate competitiveness of an 
electric utility's rates in electric utility rate 
proceedings. 
 

Introduced 1.23 
Hearing 

SB 78 Regional Rate Comparison 

SB 86 Senate Fed & 
State 

Requiring local governmental officials to 
disclose substantial interests in the 
construction and operation of a wind or solar 
energy conversion system and to abstain 
from all local governmental actions relating to 
such matters 
 

Introduced 1.23 
Referred Senate Local 
Gov’t  
Hearing 2.2  

SB 86 Local Gov't Disclosure 

SB 88 Senate 
Utilities 
 

Providing for the statewide election of 
commissioners of the state corporation 
commission, establishing the utilities 
regulation division in the office of the attorney 
general, requiring such division to represent 
and protect the collective interests of utility 
customers in utility rate-related proceedings  

Introduced 1.23 
 

SB 88 Election of Corporation 
Commissioners 

20 

http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/documents/sb68_00_0000.pdf
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/documents/sb71_00_0000.pdf
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/sb78/
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/sb86/
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/sb88/
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/sb88/


and exempting the state corporation 
commission from the open meetings act 
 

SB 100 Senate Fed & 
State 

Prohibiting ownership in certain real property 
in this state by foreign individuals and entities. 
Exceptions for SG, JO, DG and WY counties. 

Introduced 1.28 
Referred to Judiciary 
1.29 
Hearing 

SB 100 Foreign Ownership of Land 

     
     
     
HB 2004 House 

Transportation 
Establishing the EV energy equity road repair 
tax act and providing for a road repair tax on 
electricity distributed from a public charging 
station for electric vehicles. 

Introduced: January 9 
in House 
Transportation 
 

HB 2004 EV Fees 

HB 2047 House Water Increasing the amortization period from 20 to 
30 years on loans from the Kansas water 
pollution control revolving fund. 
 

Introduced 1.17 
Referred to House Ag 
& NR 1.20 

HB 2047 SRF  

HB 2110 House Tax Allowing single sales factor apportionment of 
business income for certain taxpayers. 
 

Introduced 1.19 
Hearing 

HB 2110 Single Sales Factor 

HB 2111 House Tax Establishing a 0% state rate for sales and use 
taxes for food and food ingredients, providing 
a sales tax exemption for children's diapers 
and feminine hygiene products, establishing 
the STAR bonds food sales tax revenue 
replacement fund and altering the calculation 
for STAR bond districts. 
 

Introduced 1.18 
Hearing 

HB 2111 Food sales tax & STAR Bonds 

HB 2150 House Local 
Gov’t 

Repealing the zoning and planning authority 
for cities in the three-mile area extending from 
the city boundaries. 

Introduced 1.23 
Hearing 
 

HB 2150 3 Mile Zoning 

HB 2154 House Utilities Providing for the statewide election of 
commissioners of the state corporation 

Introduced 1.23 
Hearing 

HB 2154 Election of Corporation 
Commissioners 

21 

http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/sb100/
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/documents/hb2004_00_0000.pdf
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/documents/hb2047_00_0000.pdf
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/documents/hb2110_00_0000.pdf
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/documents/hb2111_00_0000.pdf
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/hb2150/
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/hb2154/
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/hb2154/


commission, establishing the utilities 
regulation division in the office of the attorney 
general, requiring such division to represent 
and protect the collective interests of utility 
customers in utility rate-related proceedings 
and exempting the state corporation 
commission from the open meetings act 
 

HB 2155 House Utilities Requiring the state corporation commission to 
review the regional rate competitiveness of an 
electric utility's rates in electric utility rate 
proceedings. 
 

Introduced 1.23 
Hearing  

HB 2155 Regional Rate Comparison in 
Rate Case 

HB 2156 House Utilities Authorizing public utilities subject to the 
jurisdiction of the state corporation 
commission to establish rates that benefit low-
income residential customers. 
 

Introduced 1.23 
Hearing 

HB 2156 Authorizing Low Income Tariff 

HB 2159 House Utilities Providing for additional sources of revenue for 
the water program management fund and 
creating additional fees for the regulation of 
underground injection control wells. 

Introduced 1.23 
Hearing 

HB 2159 Water Mang Fund & 
Underground Injection Wells 

     
1.30.23     

 

22 

http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/hb2155/
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/hb2155/
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/hb2156/
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/hb2159/
http://www.kslegislature.org/li/b2023_24/measures/hb2159/


REAP Executive Committee 

Item: Airport Advisory Board Report 

February 2, 2023 
Submitted by Randy Frazer  Item #5A 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT: 
 
Jesse Romo, Director of Airports provided the following updates: 

 Proposal for Environmental Assessment Development Study for Jabara is being 
submitted to City Council 

 Introduction of Chris Dotson, Finance Manager 

 Clemens Aviation is requesting change to FBO status which would allow the selling of 
fuel to the public 

 RFP for Air Service Consultant has been awarded to Ailevon Pacific Aviation Consulting 
(APAC) - has proudly served the Authority as its Airport/Air Service Consultant since 
2018 

 Contract with Copp Media for media marketing is about to expire – new RFP will be 
issued 

 
AIR SERVICE: 
 
Valerie Wise, Air Service Development & Marketing Manager, provided the following updates: 

 In October 72,382 people traveled out of Wichita Eisenhower National Airport, an 
increase of 17.04% over last October. Seats were up 17.5% over October 2021. Total 
passengers increased 17.38% 

 Thanksgiving travel season, starting the Tuesday before Thanksgiving through the 
Sunday after, was at 103% of 2021 and 88% of Thanksgiving 2019. The busiest day was 
the Sunday after Thanksgiving with 2874 enplanements 

 For the month of November, 67,329 people flew out of Wichita Eisenhower National 
Airport, an increase of 5.61% over last November.  A total of 135,214 passengers flew in 
and out of the airport, an increase of 8.77% over last November 

 For the year, total passengers have increased 21.1%.  To date, total passengers are at 
88% of 2019 levels 

 Local general aviation (those operations performed by aircraft that remain in the local 
traffic pattern) showed another sizable jump, increasing 60.26% over last November, 
and up 99% year-to-date   

 Outbound air cargo dropped 2.5% from last November while inbound cargo increased 
4.73% 

 Food and gift sales increased 12.5%, rental cars increased 6.45%, and parking revenue 
increased 13.69%. 

 Next quarter, the airlines have scheduled 3.8% more flights and 11.8% more seats than 
Q1 2022. American Airlines (AA) is adding more 320’s (150 seats) and 737-800s (172 
seats in addition to large RJS; it will not have any 50-seaters on the DFW route. On ORD 
route, AA is mixing some larger regional jets in addition to the CRJs 

 Alaska will resume daily service to Seattle in February 

23 



REAP Executive Committee 

Item: Airport Advisory Board Report 

February 2, 2023 
Submitted by Randy Frazer  Item #5A 

 Southwest Airlines representatives from Network Planning, Capacity and Schedule 
Planning and their Regional Director were here last week. They were given a tour and 
had very complimentary things to say about ICT and they discussed a future destination, 
as well as restoring the Las Vegas and Phoenix routes 

 The Snowball Express was held on 12/3/22. The program is funded by the Gary Sinise 
Foundation and provides family members of fallen military hero’s an all-expense trip to 
Disney World. A Wichita mother, son and daughter were on the flight whose 
husband/father had fallen while serving in the Army. Airport Police & Fire gave the 
departing flight a water cannon salute. KAKE news covered the event and pictures are 
on the Eisenhower Airport Facebook page 

 

Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 

 

24 



REAP Executive Committee 

Item: Transit Advisory Board Report 

February 2, 2023 
Submitted by Troy Tabor  Item #5B 

Discussion Items: 

TranSystems Update: 
 
Paul Gunzelman gave quick update on the Multimodal Facility 

 Discussed reporting of 30% concept plan presented to City Council on November 1, 
2022. Council had a few questions regarding restrooms 

 Request to make sure construction facility can accommodate future expansion if needed 

 Assistant City Manager asked about solar panels for electric charging. Included in base 
estimate as part of esthetics improvements for City projects 

 $350,000 set aside for esthetics and enhancements to the facility 

 Artist consultant can continue with that development 

 Will meet with FTA December 6, 2022, to provide update. The 60% plans to be 
submitted in January of 2023. Then final plans to submit Spring of 2023. 

 
Marketing Report: 
Nathaniel Hinkel discussed digital insights on Google search which have been changing the way 
they report. Facebook had good reach and additional followers and shares. Rides to the poling 
sites was a success. Kansas Mobility League had 100 additional shares. TV and newspaper 
gained a lot of additional exposure for services provided. Working with Evergy on bus wraps for 
Evergy customer service center on Douglas between Washington and Hydraulic. 
 
Working with city on recruiting video for operations. Testimonial video of “A Day 
and Life of a Bus Operator”.  
 
Smart Card testing our vendors going to web site user and interface. Will be sending some of 
our cards to be tested and programed. 
 
Ridership excellent with three highest months we have had in years. Students have been a big 
factor. Veterans have also been excellent in last few months. 4,500 per month. As expected per 
seasonal usage. Q-line has been tapering off. Started to remain steady. Q-line also has gained 
use with Wichita State basketball service on game day. 
 
The election polls free ride day had 5,343 rides average ridership for the weekday in that time 
frame is about 18% higher. 
 
Director’s Report: 
Union contract was rectified. Approved by City Council. 24% increase over three-year period to 
improve retention and recruitment of operators. Struggle been since COVID. Hoping that will 
have a positive impact on recruiting and retaining talent. Looking to fill open positions and 
retirements. Prepare for expansion in 2024. Service routes to start in the south Wichita. We 
have several applicants that are applying that have experience so it will save time on training 

25 



REAP Executive Committee 

Item: Transit Advisory Board Report 

February 2, 2023 
Submitted by Troy Tabor  Item #5B 

process. Federal regulations are three weeks of training. Good from safety standpoint. Number 
of incentives in Washington right now. AFTA and HAD trucking reduce or make sense of 
increase requirements and impact it is going to have on recruitment and retention. Also adding 
more complexity. Adding more cost to licensing and training . Anticipate increasing service in 
2024-2026. All is dependent on how many operators we can maintain employed. It’s not about 
buses and facilities we can get. Must have people to operate the equipment.  
 
Regarding combining the Transit and Bike/Pedestrian Board: We have been sitting in limbo 
about six months for the number of board members that had to resign or termed-off to the 
board. Discussion about creating Transportation Board to replace the Transit Advisory Board 
and the Wichita Bike and Pedestrian Board. City Manager decided it will not occur. So, the TAB 
will remain as it is now, with maybe some additional topics added by City Manager. Number of 
appointments that need to be made to full strength is being determined. All current members 
will be reappointed. There may also be the addition of Workforce Alliance member to the 
board. Also, USD 259 and Veterans Affairs may be added. Also, each city Council member will 
have their appointee from large or small employers that are in their area. Envision will have a 
member on our board also.  
 
All current board members will be reappointed. Will start with fresh new terms. We need to get 
back to doing what we need to do. In 2023-2025 will be very busy. Hopefully in positive side. So 
will be several things that need to be discussed at the board level. Need to take advantage of 
revenues and requirements keeping close pulse on system. Pre-design plan contractor is 
assigned to making sure they are providing and reporting to you as well as the financial 
implications of each and everyone of those plans moving forward. Multimodal facility comes 
into play more groundbreaking. Going to be requirements for board members to be involved in 
change order and making sure we are on same page with regards to how that facility is 
supposed to function.  
 
City Manager will move very quickly to get those positions filled. This will allow you to assign a 
chair and a vice chair to start to put together all our points that we must touch on. Start 
developing as we move forward to get everybody back on the radar on Transit side. Troy asked 
about bylaws, is there a certain amount of board members needed? Raven answered yes, there 
is a set number. Jay was asked if bylaws are going to be updated? Mike mentioned the number 
of board members to be 15 to 21. Jay discussed that to make a change that is consistent to City 
Manager vision for number of appointments and the stakeholder representative be included or 
declared a change in the ordinance. He will be presenting to City Manager changing the 
ordinance to cover both those. Raven mentioned current bylaws state 13 members. Troy 
suggested lowering to 10. There needs to be each council member to have one appointee and 
special interest appointee likely go to the mayor. Will not require a District residency. Simply a 
resident of the City or Sedgwick County will do. It would be possible to give a representative a 
stakeholder position appointment to a council member. For example, WSU appointment or a 
VA appointment to any other council member right now. 

26 



REAP Executive Committee 

Item: Transit Advisory Board Report 

February 2, 2023 
Submitted by Troy Tabor  Item #5B 

Recommended Action: Receive and file. 

27 


	1 REAP Executive Committee DRAFT Agenda 02.02.23.docx
	2 REAP Executive Committee DRAFT Meeting Minutes 12.08.22
	3 Amtrak Grant
	3 REAP Letter of Support - Amtrak 02.03.23
	4 GSPA 013023 Week 4 Report
	4.1 GSPA Bill Tracker 013023
	5A Airport Advisory Board Report 02.02.23
	5B Transit Advisory Board Report

